Cabinet

Tuesday, 29th May, 2012 6.00 - 6.20 pm

Attendees	
Councillors:	Steve Jordan (Leader of the Council), John Rawson (Cabinet Member Finance), Rowena Hay (Cabinet Member Sport and Culture), Peter Jeffries (Cabinet Member Housing and Safety), Andrew McKinlay (Cabinet Member Built Environment), Jon Walklett (Cabinet Member Corporate Services) and
	Roger Whyborn (Cabinet Member Sustainability)

Minutes

1. APOLOGIES

There were no apologies.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No interests were declared.

3. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING

The minutes of the last meeting had been circulated with the agenda.

Upon a vote, those that had been present at the last meeting unanimously

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on the 17 April 2012 be approved and signed as an accurate record.

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS

No public questions or petitions had been received.

5. FOOD SAFETY DELIVERY PLAN 2012-13

The Cabinet Member Housing and Safety introduced the annual plan which provided details of how Cheltenham Borough Council would execute its statutory food safety functions.

In response to a question from another member, the Cabinet Member Housing and Safety confirmed that a risk based approach was taken which measured risk based on type of food and number of users.

Upon a vote it was unanimously

RESOLVED that the Food Service Delivery Plan for 2012-2013 be approved.

6. HEALTH AND SAFETY DELIVERY PLAN 2012-13

The Cabinet Member Housing and Safety introduced the statutory annual health and safety delivery plan which focussed resources on high risk services.

Upon a vote it was unanimously

RESOLVED that Cabinet approve the attached service plan for 2012-2013.

7. PROPOSED LEASE OF THE STANTON ROOMS AND CHURCH PIECE PUBLIC TOILETS TO CHARLTON KINGS PARISH COUNCIL-CONSIDERATION OF REVISED TERMS

The Cabinet Member Finance introduced the report as circulated with the agenda. He explained that the matter of leasing the Stanton Rooms and Church Piece public toilets to Charlton Kings Parish Council had been previously considered by Cabinet on the 26 July 2011 and agreed. Since this time it had been established that the proposed extensions fell outside of the area as was previously reported and the terms had been amended slightly to provide CKPC with more flexibility with regard to use of the building. He considered that this was a good news story for Cheltenham Borough Council, enabling a budget saving whilst empowering the local community and CKPC.

Councillor McCloskey was invited to speak as a representative of the Charlton Kings. She confirmed that a planning application had been approved by officers and subject to the agreement of the recommendations set out in the report, CKPC would commence applications for funding.

The Leader concurred that this arrangement would collectively benefit everyone in the area.

Upon a vote it was unanimously

RESOLVED that;

- 1. The land and buildings as shown edged in red on the plan (Appendix 1) be let to the Charlton Kings Parish Council.
- 2. Authority be delegated to the Head of Property and Asset Management in consultation with the Head of Legal Services to agree the terms of the new lease and the Head of Property Services and Asset Management to conclude the letting.

8. BRIEFING FROM CABINET MEMBERS

The Cabinet Member Sustainability referred Cabinet members to copies of his letter dated the 4 May to the Gloucestershire County Council Planning department regarding the proposed residual waste incinerator at Javelin Park. Having discussed the issue with his Cabinet colleagues at the time he had considered it appropriate to apply his comments to two areas of objection, firstly the attempt to prematurely approve the application ahead of the Inspector's report and secondly the issues voiced in the debate at Council surrounding the motion passed on the 10 October 2011. He felt that it may be that other members of the Cabinet may like to endorse the letter and invited them to do so.

Whilst the Leader appreciated that Councillor Whyborn had personally drafted the letter, he endorsed it as it echoed the comments made at Council on the 10 October 2011.

The Cabinet Member Finance suggested that all Members were supportive of the letter as it reflected the corporate view of environmental and waste matters generally.

Cabinet Member Built Environment noted that the Gloucestershire County Council Sustainable Transport Fund bid had been successful and would now allow for the development of Boots Corner to progress to the next stage. This formed part of a much bigger picture for the redevelopment of the town centre and the wider support that this accomplishment demonstrated should offer confidence that the plans could be delivered.

Cabinet Member Sport and Culture highlighted recent events. On Sunday people had lined the streets in support of Cheltenham Football Club on their journey to Wembley, though sadly they didn't win. The Cheltenham Torch Relay event had been a huge success with the Police estimating that 35,000 people had been at the racecourse, suggesting that the delayed arrival of the torch at the racecourse was due to the scale of the turn out along the route. She thanked all officers and volunteers that had made it possible, particularly Craig Mortiboys for his invaluable efforts. A taster session for the latest dance/exercise craze to hit the country, BOKWA, was held in Pittville Park over the weekend. Based on African dance, kick boxing and shadow boxing, BOKWA offered a cardio workout whilst being fun at the same time.

The Leader announced three decisions he had recently taken. Following his election as Leader of the Council on the 14 May he had formally allocated executive functions and this now formed part of the constitution. The attached summary set out the lead member and officer for each function, which he felt would be useful to members and officers as well as the public. The second decision related to the Cheltenham Borough Homes Board on which Councillors Driver, Smith, C. Hay, Lansley and Williams had been appointed as Councillor Board Members. The third decision, taken only today (29 May) had been the appointment of Cabinet Members to those outside bodies which formed part of the Cabinet Member portfolios. He noted the bodies on which more than one Member had been appointed: in order to maintain cross party participation, Councillor Garnham would replace Councillor Cooper on the Cheltenham Development Task Force. The relevant Cabinet Member had been appointed to the Cheltenham Parking Board and Gloucestershire Shadow Joint Waste Board, but with the addition of Councillor Jordan, the Leader of the Council. There had been no objections from the Group Leaders and the decision was subject to a 5 day call-in period.

Cabinet Member Finance, in his previous role as the Cabinet Member Built Environment, had authorised the installation of a notice board in the Norwood Triangle as part of the streetscape improvements.

Councillor Jordan Chairman